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Headquarters
5201 Broad Street Mailing Address:
Loris, South Carolina 29569 Post Office Box 218
(843) 756-6333 Loris, South Carolina 29569

Certain statements in this annual report contain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, such as statements relating to the future plans and expectations, including those related to
the registered offering of our common stock, and are thus prospective. Such forward-looking statements are subject to
risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Please see our annual report filed on Form 10-KSB for further discussion of
these risks.

HCSB Financial Corporation will furnish, free of charge, copies of the Annual Report and the Company’s Report
to the Securities and Exchange Commission (Form 10-KSB) upon written request to James R. Clarkson, President
and C.E.Q., HCSB Financial Corporation, Post Office Box 218, Loris, South Carolina 29569.

This Annual Report serves as the ANNUAL FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT furnished pursuant to Part
350 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s Rules and Regulations. THIS STATEMENT HAS NOT BEEN
REVIEWED OR CONFIRMED FOR ACCURACY OR RELEVANCE BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT
INSURANCE CORPORATION.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION
Ten Year History

(Omit 000’s)

‘ Assets Deposits
1994 38,009 $ 34,109
199is 45,913 41,542
19916 49,405 42,851
199}7 72,156 63,885
19918 83,586 69,970
1999 114,326 94,829
20Q0 143,718 123,500
20031 148,651 120,073
200jz 211,598 164,161

269,714 209,931

-

$

Loans (net)

22,158
28,959
35,556
40,711
55,061
74,871
90,300

116,596

161,381

190,055

$

Capital

3,644
4,006
5,495
7,473
8,024
8,341
9,781
10,895
19,850

21,509

__Earnings

$

345
202
556
429
511
994
1,037
996
1,161

1,568




MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

It is with great pleasure that I report to you on another very progressive year for HCSB Financial Corporation and its
subsidiary, Horry County State Bank. Not only were we fortunate to sustain our growth in assets, but more importantly
our growth in earnings outpaced our asset growth as we experienced our best year in this regard.

During the year 2003, total assets of our company grew by 27.5% and closed the year at $269.7 million. This increase
was made possible by a 27.9% increase in our deposits to a year end level of $209.9 million which enabled us to expand
our loan portfolio by 17.8% to $190.1 net of our Reserve for Loan Losses.

More impressively, our net income for the year 2003 increased by 35.1% over the prior year and surpassed $1.5 million.
As a result, shareholders’ equity was boosted by 8.4% and concluded the year 2003at $21.5 million.

These accomplishments seem quite significant to me in light of the status of our national economy, the general level of
interestrates and the resulting conservative nature of business and consumers in their borrowing and spending habits. The
interest rate scenario alone restrained our earnings growth from being better.

Other accomplishments for our company during the year 2003 included the February opening of our new permanent
office in Windy Hill Beach at the new entrance to Barefoot Resort. In November we also relocated our Tabor City office
from its modular facility into a permanent building on the same site on Hwy. 701 Bypass. And, too, we introduced our
on-line banking service last year as well. We also began construction of a new 14,000 square foot facility at 1701 N. Oak
Street in Myrtle Beach to house our Myrtle Beach branch.

And not only did our newest offices in Windy Hill Beach and Myrtle Beach perform very well in their first full year of
operations, their emergence served to further diversify our market area. Unlike most community banks, we truly have the
good fortune of operating in very differing communities and economies. While we continue to be a strong supporter of
farmers in northern Horry and southern Columbus counties, we have been able through expansion of our branch system to
grow extremely well into our area’s best retail market in Conway as well as into the Grand Strand area, which within
itself provides significantly diverse markets.

Our success has obviously then been bolstered by the markets in which we are fortunate to operate. These business
places simply provide us with opportunities for success, however; it continues to be the dedicated efforts of our
company’s employees who are truly primarily responsible for the success that we experienced last year and since our
inception in 1988. While we have aiways looked for good branch locations, we have been extremely blessed to be able to
build our banking offices around excellent people who set HCSB Financial Corporation and Horry County State Bank
apart from other financial companies. As shareholders, we indeed owe our employees a big “Thank You!”

When we blend our staff of employees with the conscientious oversight of our Board of Directors, the vocal assistance
that we receive from our various Advisory Boards, as well as the support of our shareholders, it is easyto see why we
have done so well. [ encourage our shareholders to not only continue to support our company with your banking
business, but further to recommend Horry County State Bank at your every opportunity in 2004 as we continue to work
together to achieve our lofty goals.

Most respectfully,

Al

ames R. Clarkson
President & C.E.O.




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION
‘ Selected Financial Data
i

The following table sets forth certain selected financial data concerning the Company. The selected financial data has
been derived from the financial statements. This information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
of the Company, including the accompanying ndes, included elsewhere herein.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands, except per share)
Financial Condition:

Investment securities $ 28,115 & 18,060 $ 17,149 $ 20,877 $ 23,892
Allowance for loan losses 1,774 1,452 1,112 1,019 922
Net loans ‘ 190,055 161,381 116,596 90,300 74,871
Premises and equipment, net 9,377 7,908 5,539 5,502 4,417
Total assets 269,714 211,598 148,651 143,718 114,326
Noninterest-bearing deposits 23,149 16,714 9,475 8,273 7,998
Interest-bearin;g deposits 186,782 147,447 110,598 115,227 86,831
Total deposits 209,931 164,161 120,073 123,500 94,829
Advances from the Federal Home

Loan Bank 36,690 26,690 14,600 9,600 10,000
Total liabilities 248,205 191,748 137,756 133,937 105,985
Total shareho],ders' equity 21,509 19,850 10,895 9,781 8,341
Results of Operations:
Interest income $ 14237 § 12366 § 11,774 -$ 10,552 $ 7,947
Interest expense 5,540 5,211 6217 5,815 3.804
Net interest income 8,697 7,155 5,557 4,737 4,143
Provision for loan losses 857 535 348 271 190
Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 7,840 6,620 5,209 4,466 3,953
Other income ! 2,002 1,708 1,290 1,156 792
Other expense 7,436 6,550 4,977 4,037 3.227
Income before income taxes 2,406 1,778 1,522 1,585 1,518
Income tax exbense 838 617 526 548 524
Net income ‘ $ 1,568 S_ 1,161 $ 9296 $ 1037 § 994
Per Share Data
Net income | § 09 $ 077 $& 078 § 081 $ 078
Period end book value $§ 1293 $ 1197 §$ 855 § 767 $ 654

M Adjusted fojr the effects of the two-for-one share split in the form of a 100% share dividend declared in
January 2000 and the 5% share dividends declared in February 2003, February 2001 and January 1999.
Adjustments have also been made for the 7.5% stock dividend declared in January 2004.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION
Description of Company’s Business

HCSB Financial Corporation (the Company) was incorporated on June 10, 1999. The Company’sonly significant asset
is its wholly owned subsidiary, Horry County State Bank (the Bank). The Bank is a state-chartered bank incorporated on
December 18, 1987 and located at 5201 Broad Street, Loris, South Carolina. The Company’s primary market includes
Horry and Marion Counties in South Carolina and Columbus and Brunswick Counties in North Carolina. From its ten
branch locations, the: Company offers a full range of deposit services, including checking accounts, savings accounts,
certificates of deposit, money market accounts, and IRA’s.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of attracting deposits from the general public and using these deposits
together with other funds to make agricultural, commercial, consumer, and real estate loans. The Company’s operating
results depend to a substantial extent on the difference between interest and fees earned on loans and investments and the
Company’s interest expense, consisting principally of interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Unlike most industrial
companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of financial institutions are monetary. As aresult, interest rates have a
greater effect on the financial institution’s performance. In addition to competing with other traditional financial
institutions, the Company also competes for savings dollars with nontraditional financial intermediaries, such as mutual
funds. This has resulted in a highly competitive market area. The Company attempts to compete in this highly
competitive market by focusing on providing personal service and attention to its customers.

In June of 1997, the State Board of Financial Institutions and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
approved the Company’s applications to open three branches in Little River, Tabor City, and Loris. As a condition of
approval, the Company was required to obtain an additional $2,000,000 in capital. In response, the Company issued
65,805 shares for $1,542,000, net of expenses, during 1997 and 42,027 shares for $967,000 during 1996. The Loris
branch opened for business on June 9, 1997, and the Tabor City and Little River branches opened on October 5 and 6,
1997, respectively.

The Company’s application to open a branch in Conway, South Carolina was approved by the State Board of Financial
Institutions and the FDIC in December of 1997. The branch opened for business on February 17, 1998.

The Company’s application to open a branch in the Homewood community north of Conway, South Carolina was
approved by the State Board of Financial Institutions and the FDIC in September of 1999. The branch opened for
business on August 10, 2000.

The Company’s application to open a branch in the Socastee section of Myrtle Beach, South Carolina was approved by
the State Board of Financial Institutions and the FDIC in December of 2000. The branch opened for business on
February 20, 2001.

In an effort to strengthen our regulatory capital position to support future growth, HCSB Financial Corporation undertook
a secondary stock offering which ran from March to August of 2002. The Corporation issued 365,712 shares of common
stock at a price per share of $22.00 which added over $8,000,000 to total capital.

The Company’s application to open a branch in the Windy Hill section of North Myrtle Beach, South Carolina was
approved by the State Board of Financial Institutions and the FDIC in April of2002. The branch opened for business on
June 3, 2002.

The Company’s application to open a branch in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina was approved by the State Board of
Financial Institutions and the FDIC in July of 2002. The branch opened for business on August 5, 2002.

As a result of this expansion of the Bank's branch system, the Company has been able to substantially diversify its
marketplace from one of a predominantly agricultural flavor to one which blends residential developments of retirees and
others, tourism, major employmentareas, central county government and the market's most active overall growth areas.
In doing so, the Company has reduced considerably the seasonality in its loan portfolio as well as the risks that are at
times inherent with concentrations of loans in one particular segment of the economy.




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION
Market for Common Share and Dividends

As of DecembeTr 31, 2003, there were 1,547,544 shares (1,663,610 shares as adjusted for 7.5% stock dividend
declared in January 2004) of our common stock outstanding held by approximately 2,216 shareholders of record.
There is currently no established public trading market in our common stock, and trading and quotations of our
common stock have been limited and sporadic. Because there has not been an established market for our common
stock, we may not be aware of all prices at which our common stock has been traded. We have not determined
whether the trades of which we are aware were the result of arm's-length negotiations between the parties. Based on
information available to us from a limited number of sellers and purchasers of common stock who have engaged in
privately negotidted transactions of which we are aware, we believe transactions in our common stock can be fairly
summarized as follows for the periods indicated:

2003 : Low High
Fourth Quarter $ 23.00 $ 25.00
Third Quarter $ 23.00 $ 23.00
Second Quarter $ 2250 $ 23.00
First Quane;f $ 2250 $ 2250

2002

|
Fourth Quarter $ 22.00 $ 2250
Third Quartc;er $ 22.00 $ 22.00
Second Quarter $ 22.00 $ 22.00
First Quarter $ 2200 S 22.00

The above stockiprices have not been adjusted to reflect the 5% stock dividends paid in 2003 and 2002 and the 7.5%
stock dividend declared in January 2004.

No cash dividends have ever been declared or paid by the Company. However, the Board of Directors approved a
10% stock dividend for each of the five years ending December 31, 1996. The Company also declared a 5% stock
dividend on January 14, 1999 for sharcholders of record February 1, 1999 and a two-for-one stock split in the form
of a 100% stock dividend approved on January 27, 2000 to shareholders of record February 15, 2000. The
Company also paid a 5% stock dividend to shareholders on March 15, 2001, March 20, 2002, as well as March 21,
2003. The Boajrd of Directors has declared a 7.5% stock dividend payable March 12, 2004 for shareholders of
record February|13, 2004. Management does not expect the Company to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. South Carolina and Federal banking regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends that can be paid to
HCSB Financial Corporation from the Bank.




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion describes our results of operations for 2003 as compared to 2002 and also analyzes our financial
condition as of December 31, 2003 as compared to December 31,2002, Like most community banks, we derive most of
our income from interest we receive on our loans and investments. Our primary source of funds for making these loans
and investments is our deposits, on which we pay interest. Consequently, one of the key measures of oursuccess is our
amount of net interest income, or the difference between the income on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and
investments, and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowed funds. In order to
maximize our net interest income, we must not only manage the volume of these balance sheet items, but also the yields
that we earn on our interest-earning assets and the rates that we pay on interestbearing liabilities.

We have included a number of tables to assist in our description of these measures. For example, the “Average Balances”
table shows the average balance during 2003 and 2002 of each category of our assets and liabilities, as well as the yield we
earned or the rate we paid with respect to each category. A review of this table shows that our loans typically provide
higher interest yields than do other types of interest earning assets, which is why we intend to channel a substantial
percentage of our earning assets into our loan portfolio. Similarly, the “Rate/Volume Analysis” table helps demonstrate
the impact of changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and liabilities during the years shown. We also track
the sensitivity of our various categories of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates, and we have included an
“Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis” table to help explain this. Finally, we have included a number of tables that provide
details about our investment securities, our loans, and our deposits and other borrowings.

Of course, there are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible. We establish and maintain this allowance by charging a provision for loan
losses against our operating earnings. In the Loan Portfolio section we have included a detailed discussion of this process,
as well as several tables describing our allowance for loan losses and the allocation of this allowance among our various
categories of loans.

In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees that we charge to our customers.
Likewise, we incur other operating expenses as well. We describe the various components of this noninterest income, as
well as our noninterest expense, in the Other Income and Other Expense section

The Company continued to grow in 2003, despite the general economic downturn and declining interest rate environment.
Total assets increased by $58,116,000, or 27.47%, and net loans increased by $28,674,000, or 17.77%. Much of this
growth is attributable to the success of our two newest branch offices in the Windy Hill community and in downtown
Myrtle Beach.

The Company’s growth began to reap its rewards in 2003. Net income increased by 35.06%, from $1,161,000 in 2002 to
$1,568,000 in 2003, primarily as a result of increased income from loans and related fees. The growth of the loan
portfolio resulted in a loan to deposit ratio of 91.38% and a $10,000,000 increase in borrowings with the Federal Home
Loan Bank. The Company will need to attract additional deposits, borrow more money, or a combination of the two to
continue expansion of the loan portfolio. A more detailed discussion of the factors contributing to growth and challenges
is presented below.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company experienced an increase of $1,612,000, or 14.02%, in interest income on loans and related fees. Because of
the declining interest rate environment, total interest expense increased only $329,000, or 6.31%, from $5,211,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2002, despite the overall growth in interest bearing deposits. Although net interest income
increased significantly during 2003 when compared to 2002, the Company also experienced a significant increase in
noninterest expense during 2003. The primary factor contributing to the increase of noninterest expense was salaries and
employee benefits, which increased $573,000, or 15.3%, from $3,746,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. This
increase was related primarily to the Windy Hill and Myrtle Beach offices being open for the full year of 2003 as
compared to only a portion of 2002, as well as additional support staff necessary to complement the Company's growth.
Overall, the Company experienced net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 of $1,568,000, compared to
$1,161,000 for the year ended December 31,2002. This represents an increase in net income of $407,000, or 35.06%. An
interest rate swap transaction conducted by the Company during the third quarter of 2003 contributed to the minimal
growth in interest expense for the year 2003.

-



HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 total assets increased $58,116,000, or 27.47%, when compared to
December 31, 2002 The primary reason for the increase in total assets was an increase in net loans of $28,674,000, or
17.77%, durmg 2003 from $161,381,000 at December 31, 2002. Total deposits increased $45,770,000, or 27.88%, from
the December 3‘1 2002, amount of $164,161,000. Within the deposit area, interest-bearing deposits increased
$39,335,000, or 26.7%, and noninterest-bearing deposits increased $6,435,000, or 38.5%, during 2003. The increase in
deposits was primarily due to the opening of two new branches. In order to better match maturities of liabilities with the
loan portfolio, tl;le Company has chosen to increase its borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank rather than to
concentrate on increasing deposits at this time. This also allows the Company to lock in low rates for a longer period of
time. Asa result borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank have increased by $10,000,000, or 37.47%, from

$26,690,000 at ]December 31,2002,

HISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The Company has sought to maintain a conservative approach in determining the distribution of its assets and liabilities.
The following table presents the percentage relationships of significant componentsof the Company’s average balance

sheets for the last three fiscal years.

Balance Sheet Categories as a Percent of Average Total Assets

! 2003 2002 2001
Assets: i
Interest earning assets:
Federal funds sold 8.58% 5.40% 6.27%
Time deposits with other banks - 0.03 0.12
Investment securities 11.14 8.67 14.78
Loans i 72.37 78.47 71.05
Total inteﬁest earning assets 92.09 92.57 92.22
Cash and due from banks 3.72 2.73 2.65
Allowance for; loan losses (0.58) (0.69) (0.71)
Premises and equipment 335 3.74 3.71
Other assets 1.42 1.65 2.13
Total assets _100.00% ___100.00% __100.00%
Liabilities and sihareholders’ equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearinfg deposits 69.43% 68.77% 76.97%
Federal funds purchased - 0.01 0.03
Advances fronﬁ the Federal Home Loan Bank 14.03 12.10 9.02
Total intefest-bearing liabilities 83.46 80.88 86.02
Noninterest-béaring deposits 8.38 10.64 6.30
Accrued interest and other liabilities 0.47 0.69 0.74
Total liabilities 92.31 92.21 93.06
Shareholders’ equity 7.69 7.79 6.94
Total liabi!ities and shareholders’ equity 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

NET INTEREST INCOME

Earnings are dependent to a large degree on net interest income. Net interest income represents the difference between
gross interest earned on earning assets, primarily loans and investment securities, and interest paid on deposits and
borrowed funds. Net interest income is affected by the interest rates earned or paid and by volume changes in loans,
investment securities, deposits, and borrowed funds. The interest rate spread and the net yield on earning assets are two
significant elements in analyzing the Company’snet interest income. The interest rate spread is the difference between the
yield on average earning assets and the rate on average interest bearing liabilities. The net yield on earning assets is
computed by dividing net interest income by the average earning assets.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, net interest income was $8,697,000, an increase of $1,542,000, or 21.55%, over
net interest income of $7,155,000 in 2002. Interest income from loans, including fees, was $13,112,000, an increase of
$1,612,000, or 14.02%, from 2002 to 2003 as demand for loans in the Company’s marketplace continued to grow. Interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $5,540,000, compared to $5,211,000 for 2002. This represents a
increase of $329,000, or 6.31%, compared to the prior year. The interest rate spread and net yield on earning assets were
negatively impacted when compared to the previous year. The net yield realized on earning assets was 3.74% for 2003,
compared to 4.20% in 2002. The interest rate spread was 3.50% and 3.87% in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The followingtable sets forth, for the periods indicated, the weighted-average yields earned, the weighted-average yields
paid, the interest rate spread, and the net yield on earning assets. The table also indicates the average daily balance and the
interest income or expense by specific categories.

Year ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/  Average Income/  Yield/
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Expense _Rate Balance _Expense Rate Balance _Expense Rate
Assets:
Earning Assets:
Securities, taxable $ 22619 § 662 293% $ 11,222 § 496 442%$ 17,826 § 1,200 6.73%
Securities, nontaxable 3,644 163 447 3,538 158 4.47 3,454 153 4.43
Loans 182,415 13112 719 144,266 11,500 797 106,130 9,974 9.40
Federal funds sold 21,711 231 1.06 9,930 155 1.56 9,361 388 4.14
Time deposits with
other banks - - - 60 2 3.34 184 5 272
Nonmarketable equity
securities 1,827 69 378 1,172 55 4.70 790 54 6.84
Total earning assets 232,246 14237 6.13 170,188 12,366 7.27 137,745 11,774 8.55
Cash and due from banks 9,289 5,012 3,952
Allowance for loan losses (1,463) (1,261) (1,063)
Premises and equipment 8,447 6,881 5,536
Other assets 3,570 3,034 3,201
Total assets §252,089 § 183,854 $ 149371
Liabilities:
InterestBearing Liabilities:
Interestbearing deposits ~ $175,013 4,045 231% §$ 126,442 4,056 3.21%$ 114,967 5,421 4.72%
Other borrowings 35,348 1495 423 22,254 1.155 519 13,521 796 5.89
Total interestbearing
liabilities 210,361 5,540 2.63 148,696 5,211 3.50 128,488 6,217 4.84
Noninterestbearing deposits 21,123 19,568 9,413
Accrued interest and other
liabilities 1,215 1,260 1,104
Shareholders’ equity 19.390 14.330 10,366
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $252,089 $ 183,854 § 149,371
Net interest income/spread $ 8697 3.50% § 7,158 3.87% § S,557 3.71%
Net interest margin 3.74% 4.20% 4.03%

() The effects of loans in nonaccrual status and fees collected are not significant to the computations.



HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

Net interest income can also be analyzed in terms of the impact of changing rates and changing volume. The following
table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities have affected the Company’s interest income and interest expense during the periods indicated.
Information on changes in each category attributable to (i) changes due to volume (change in volume multiplied by prior
period rate), (ii) changes due to rates (changes inrates multiplied by prior period volume), and (iii) changes in rate and
volume (change in rate multiplied by the change in volume) is provided as follows:
1 2003 compared to 2002

Due to increase (decrease) in

(Dollars in thousjana’s) Volume (1) Rate (1)  Volume/Rate Total
Interest income:
Taxable securities $ 377§ (125) § 86) $ 166
Nontaxable securities 4 - 1 5
Loans ‘ 2,276 (847) 183 1,612
Federal funds sold 138 G7 25 76
Time deposits with other banks o) m - )
Nonmarketable equity securities 23 (8) 1) 14
Total interest income 2,817 (1,018) 72 1.871
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing deposits 1,165 (848) (328) (1D
Other borrowings 508 (160) (8) 340
Total interest expense 1,673 (1.008) (336) 329
Netlinterest income hy 1,144 § 10) $ 408 § 1,542
‘ 2002 compared to 2001
! Due to increase (decrease) in
(Dollars in thousiands) Volume (1) Rate (1)  Volume/Rate Total
Interest incomq:
Taxable securities $ (444) § 411) $ 151 § (704)
Nontaxable securities 4 1 - 5
Loans | 3,581 (1,329) (556) 1,696
Federal funds sold 24 (242) (15) (233)
Time deposits with other banks 3) 1 H 3)
Nonmarketable equity securities 26 (7 (8 1
Total inﬁerest income 3,188 (1.997) (360) 762
Interest expens;e:
Interest-bearing deposits 541 (1,728) (178) (1,365)
Other borrowings 514 (94) (61) 359
Total injterest expense 1,055 (1,822) (239) (1,006)
Netjinterest income 3 2,133 % (175%) $ (121) $ 1,768
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

RATE SENSITIVITY

Interest rates paid on deposits and borrowed funds and interest rates earned on loans and investments have generally
followed the fluctuations in market rates in 2003 and 2002. However, fluctuations in market interest rates do not
necessarily have a significant impact on net interest income, depending on the Company’s interest rate sensitivity position.
A rate-sensitive asset or liability is one that can be repriced either up or down in interest rate within a certain time interval.
When a proper balance exists between rate-sensitive assets and rate-sensitive liabilities, market interest rate fluctuations
should not have a significant impact on liquidity and earnings. The larger the imbalance, the greater the interest rate risk
assumed and the greater the positive or negative impact of interest fluctuations on liquidity and earnings.

Interest rate sensitivity managementis concerned with the management of both the timing and the magnitude of repricing
characteristics of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and is an important part of asset/liability
management. The objectives of interest rate sensitivity managementare to ensure the adequacy of net interest income and
to control the risks to net interest income associated with movements in interest rates. The following table, “Interest Rate
Sensitivity Analysis,” indicates that, on a cumulative basis, after three through twelve months, rate-sensitive liabilities
exceeded rate-sensitive assets, resulting in a twelve month liability sensitive position. For a bank with a liability-sensitive
position, or negative gap, falling interest rates would generally be expected to have a positive effect on net interest income,
and rising interest rates would generally be expected to have the opposite effect. The following table presents the
Company’s rate sensitivity at each of the time intervals indicated as of December 31, 2003 and may not be indicative of
the Company’s rate-sensitivity position at other points in time.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

After One After Three Greater
Through Through Within Than One
December 31,2003 Within One Three Twelve One Year or
(Dollars in thousands) Month Months Months Year Non-Sensitive _ Total
Assets
Interest-earning assets
Federal fund sold $ 22,832 § - 3 - § 22832 % - § 22,832
Loans 82,223 5,832 14,923 102,978 88,030 191,008
Securities - 266 157 423 29611 30,034
Total earning assets 105,055 6.098 15,080 126,233 117.641 243.874
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:
Demand deposits 72,941 - - 72,941 - 72,941
Savings deposits 26,334 - - 26,334 - 26,334
Time deposits 3,555 3,808 74.239 81,602 5,905 87.507
Total interest-bearing
deposits 102,830 3,808 74,239 180,877 5,905 186,782
Federal Home Loan Bank advances - - - - 36,690 36,690
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 102,830 3,808 74,239 180,877 42,595 223.472
Period gap 3 2,225 § 2290 3 (59,159) 3§ (54.644) 3 75,046
Cumulative gap S 225 8 4515 § (54,644) $ (54,649 § 20,40
Ratio of cumulative gap to total
earning assets 0.91% 1.85%  (22.41%) (22.41%) 8.37%

(M Excludes nonaccrual loans.

-11-




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings based upon management’sevaluation of specific loans in its portfolio
and general econbmic conditions and trends in the marketplace. The 2003 and 2002 provisions for loan losses and their
related effect of increasing the allowance for loan losses are related to growth in the loan portfolio. Please refer to the
section “Loan Pdnfolio” for a discussion of management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowances for loan losses.
In 2003 and 2002, the provisions for loan losses were $857,000 and $535,000, respectively.

\

OTHER INCOME

Other income wjas $2,002,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $294,000, or 17.21%, when
compared with the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase is primarily a result of an increase of $154,000, or
13.91%, in service charges on deposit accounts from $1,107,000 for 2002 to $1,261,000 for 2003, which corresponds to
an increase in average demand deposits and savings accounts to $116,820,000 during 2003 as compared to $64,926,000
during 2002. ThHe Company also recognized gains of sales of securities in 2003 of $92,000, as compared to $8,000 in
2002.

OTHER EXPENSES

All categories ofother expenses increased during 2003 due to continued growth of the Company. Salaries and employee
benefits increased $573,000 or 15.30%, due to an increase in staffing for the new branches at Windy Hill and Myrtle
Beach and to noﬁnal salary increases among existing employees. Net occupancy and furniture and fixtures and equipment
expenses also increased $118,000 due mainly to an increase in depreciation expense and the cost of equipment
maintenance attributable to the opening of the new branches. Other operating expenses were $1,928,000 for the year
ended December} 31, 2003, compared to $1,733,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax expense for 2003 was $838,000, an increase of $221,000 from the 2002 expense of $617,000.
The increase in the expense results primarily from increased income before taxes. The Company’s effective tax rates for
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were 34.83% and 34.70%, respectively.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future obligations through liquidation or maturity of existing assets or the
acquisition of additional liabilities. HCSB Financial Corporation manages both assets and liabilities to achieve
appropriate level‘s of liquidity. Cash and federal funds sold are the Company’s primary sources of asset liquidity. These
funds provide a|cushion against short-term fluctuations in cash flow from both deposits and loans. The investment
securities portfolio is the Company’sprincipal source of secondary asset liquidity. However, the availability of this source
of funds is inﬂuénced by market conditions. Individual andcommercial deposits are the Company’s primary source of
funds for credit activities. Althoughnot historically used as principal sources of liquidity, federal funds purchased from

correspondent banks and advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank are other options available to management.

Asof December 31,2003, the Company had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks totaling
$9,000,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to fourteen day basis for general corporate purposes. The lenders
have reserved the right not to renew their respective lines. The Company may also borrow an additional $17,229,000 from
the Federal Home Loan Bank based on a predetermined formula. Securities available-for-sale, which totaled $28,115,000
at December 31; 2003, also serve as a ready source of liquidity. Management believes that the Company’s liquidity
sources are adequate to meet its operating needs. The level of liquidity is measured by the loans-to-total borrowed funds
ratio, which was at 77.78% and 85.32% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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IMPACT OF OFF-BALANCE-SHEET INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments consist of commitmentsto extend credit and standby letters
of credit. Commitmentsto extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to a customer at predetermined interest
rates as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. A commitment involves, to varying
degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets. The Company’s
exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the instrument is represented by the
contractual notional amount of the instrument. Since certain commitments are expected to expire without being drawn
upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Letters of credit are
conditional commitments issued to guarantee a customer’s performance to a third party and have essentially the same
credit risk as other lending facilities. Standby letters of credit often expire without being used. Management believes that
through various sources of liquidity, the Company has the necessary resources to meet obligations arising from these
financial instruments.

The Company uses the same credit underwriting procedures for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit
as for on-balance-sheet instruments. The credit worthiness of each borrower is evaluated and the amount of collateral, if
deemed necessary, is based on the credit evaluation. Collateral held for commitmentsto extend credit and standby letters
of credit varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, equipment, and income-producing
commercial properties.

The Company is not involved in off-balance sheet contractual relationships, other than those disclosed in this report, that
could result in liquidity needs or other commitments or that could significantly impact earnings.

As of December 31, 2003, commitmentsto extend credit totaled $23,323,000 and standby letters of credit totaled $835,000.

The followingtable sets forth the length of time until maturity for unused commitmentsto extend credit and standby letters
of credit at December 31, 2003.

After One After Three

Through Through Greater
Within One Three Twelve Within One Than
(Dollars in thousands) Month Months Months Year One Year Total
Unused commitments to
extend credit $ 1,937 $ 2873 $ 12,011 § 16,821 $ 6,502 § 23323
Standby letters of credit 39 - 796 835 - 835
Totals s 1976 § 2873 § 12,807 § 17,656 S 6502 § 24,158

The Company entered into interest swap agreements associated with Federal Home Loan Bank advances during the third
quarter of 2003. The interestrate swaps effectively converted the fixed interest rates on the advances to a variable rate. The
notional amount of advances involved in this transaction totaled $14,600,000. The unrealized gain related to the interest
rate swaps was $83,000 at December 31, 2003. The Company believes that the hedging of such debt was very effective as
managementhedged against further declines in interest rates as well as a continuation of interest rates at their present low
levels.
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IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

The financial statejments and related financial data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of
historical dollars without considering changes in relative purchasing power over time due to inflation. Unlike most
industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. Asaresult,
interest rates genetally have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than does the effect of
inflation. ‘

While the effect of inflation on a bank is normally not as significantas its influence on those businesses that have large
investments in plant and inventories, it does have an effect. Interest rates generally increase as the rate of inflation
increases, but the rjnagnitude of the change in rates may not be the same. While interest rates have traditionally moved
with inflation, the effect on income is diminished because both interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities vary
directly with each other unless the Company is in a high liability sensitive position. Also, general increases in the price of
goods and service$ will result in increased operating expenses.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company useé several indicators of capital strength. The most commonly used measure is average common equity to
average assets, wHich was 7.69% in 2003 compared to 7.79% in 2002. This ratio changed very little as income was
realized proportionately to the increase in assets.

|

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failureé to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional

discretionary actiohs by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank

must meet speciﬁc‘capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-

sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to

qualitative judgm?nts by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain
minimum ratios of Tier 1 and total capital as a percentage of assets and off-balance-sheet exposures, adjusted for risk
weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Tier 1 capital consists of common shareholders’ equity, excluding the unrealized gain
or loss on securities available-for-sale, minus certain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital consists of the allowance for loan
losses subject to certain limitations. Total capital for purposes of computing the capital ratios consists of the sum of Tier 1
and Tier 2 capital.| The regulatory minimum requirements are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total riskbased capital.

The Company and the Bank are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on quarterly average assets,
which is known as the leverage ratio. Only the strongest banks are allowed to maintain capital at the minimum
requirement of 3%;. All others are subject to maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum.

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notifications from the Bank’s primary regulator categorized the Bank as well-
capitalized under |the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events that
management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES - continued

The Company and the Bank are required to maintain certain risk-based and leverage ratios. The Company and the Bank
exceeded these regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001as set forth in the following tables.

December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
The Company
Tier 1 capital $ 21,453 $ 19,727 $ 10,867
Tier 2 capital 1,773 1.452 1,112
Total qualifying capital $ 23,226 3 21,179 3 11,979
Risk-adjusted total assets
(including off-balance-sheet exposures) $ 202,436 $ 169,161 s 123413
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 10.59% 11.66% 8.81%
Total risk-based capital ratio 11.46% 12.52% 9.71%
Tier 1 leverage ratio 821% 9.12% 7.12%
December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
The Bank.
Tier 1 capital $ 20,017 $ 18,331 $ 10,849
Tier 2 capital 1,773 1,452 1,112
Total qualifying capital b 21,790 $ 19,783 g 11,961
Risk-adjusted total assets
(including off-balance-sheet exposures) $ 202,494 $§ 169176 §___123,422
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 9.89% 10.83% 8.79%
Total risk-based capital ratio 10.76% 11.68% 9.69%
Tier 1 leverage ratio 7.66% 8.67% 7.13%

The Company does not expect to pay cash dividends to shareholders during 2004.
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‘ INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
Management claésiﬁes investment securities as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale based on their intentions and
the Company’sability to hold them until maturity. In determining such classifications, securities that management has the
positive intent and the Company has the ability to hold until maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at
amortized cost. All other securities are designated as available-for-sale and carried at estimated fair value with unrealized
gains and losses included in shareholders’ equity on an after-tax basis. As of December 31,2003 and 2002, all securities
were classified as available-for-sale.

The following tables summarize the carrying value of investment securities as of the indicated dates and the weighted-
average yields of those securities at December 31, 2003.

i
Investment Secnjlrities Portfolio Composition

|

December 31, . 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities of U.S. government agencies and corporations $ 5065 % 6,612 § 6,529
Obligations of sjtate and local governments 4,944 3,735 3,509
Commercial paper - - 3,002
Taxable obligations of state and local governments 977 - -
Mortgage-back{ed securities 17,129 7,713 4,109
Nonmarketablel equity securities 1.919 1,394 790
Total securities $ 30034 $_ 19454 § 17,939

Investment Securities Portfolio Maturity Schedule

Available-for-Sale

December 31, 2b03 Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Yield @
Securities of U.S. Government agencies and corporaions due:
After one ye_%ar but within five years $ 5,076 2.076%
Obligations of states and local governments due:
Within one year 265 5.303%
After one ye;ar but within five years 407 5.632%
After five years but within ten years 3,251 5.599%
After ten years 880 7.275%
| 4,803 5.892%
Mortgage-backed securities 17,159 3.009%
Equities available-for-sale 831 15.871%
Corporate securi?ties available-for-sale 157 1.983%

§ 28006 _3.710%

M For tax-exemét securities, the tax equivalent yieldhas been calculated using an incremental rate of 34%.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO

Management believes the loan portfolio is adequately diversified. There are no foreign loans, and agricultural loans as of
December 31,2003 are limited. There are no significant concentrations of loans in any particular individuals or industry
or group of related individuals or industries.

The Company has experienced continued growth of its loan portfolio throughout 2003 and 2002, resulting in increases of
$28,996,000 and $45,125,000, respectively. Management has concentrated on maintaining quality in the loan portfolio.
The loan-to-deposit ratio is used to monitor a financial institution’s potential profitability and efficiency of asset
distribution and utilization. Generally, a higher loan-to-deposit ratio is indicative of higher interest income since loans
yield a higher return than other interest-earning assets. The loan-to-deposit ratios were 91.38% and 99.19% at December
31,2003 and 2002, respectively. The loans-to-total borrowed funds ratio was 77.78% and 85.32% at December 31,2003
and 2002, respectively. Management intends to deploy available funds to loans in order to maximize earnings and achieve
its targeted ratio of loans to deposits; however, there can be no assurance that management will be able to execute its
strategy or that loan demand will continue to support growth.

Loan Portfolio Composition

December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate - construction and

land development $ 13,845 $ 17,032 § 8,058 §$ 5122 § 3,983
Real estate - mortgage and
commercial 89,801 65,245 43,168 32,178 26,601
Agricultural 6,891 5,496 4921 5,427 5,961
Commercial and industrial 48,479 48,403 40,608 30,451 22,796
Consumer 27,325 25,020 20,825 17,482 16,193
All other loans (including
overdrafts) 5,488 1,637 128 669 305
Total gross loans $ 19189 § 162,833 $ 117708 3 91329 § __ 75,839
Credit Risk Management

Credit risk entails both general risk, which is inherent in the process of lending, and risk that is specific to individual
borrowers. The management of credit risk involves the processes of loan underwriting and loan administration. The
Company manages credit risk through a strategy of making loans within the Company’s primary marketplace and within
the Company’s limits of expertise. Althoughmanagementseeks to avoid concentrations of credit by loan type or industry
through diversification, a substantial portion of the borrowers’ ability to honor the terms of their loans is dependent on the
business and economic conditions in Horry and Marion Counties in South Carolina and Columbus and Brunswick
Counties in North Carolina. Additionally, since real estate is considered by the Company as the most desirable
nonmonetary collateral, a significant portion of the Company’s loans are collateralized by real estate; however, the cash
flow of the borrower or the business enterprise is generally considered as the primary source of repayment. Generally, the
value of real estate is not considered by the Company as the primary source of repayment for performing loans. The
Company also seeks to limit total exposure to individual and affiliated borrowers. The Company manages risk specific to
individual borrowers through the loan underwriting process and through an ongoing analysis of the borrower’s ability to
service the debt as well as the value of the pledged collateral.

The Company’s loan officers and loan administration staff are charged with monitoring the Company’s loan portfolio and
identifying changes in the economy or in a borrower’s circumstances which may affect the ability to repay the debt or the
value of the pledged collateral. In order to assess and monitor the degree of risk in the Company’s loan portfolio, several
credit risk identification and monitoring processes are utilized. The Company assesses credit risk initially through the
assignment of a risk grade to each loan based upon an assessment of the borrower’s financial capacity to service the debt
and the presence and value of any collateral.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO - continued

Credit grading isi adjusted during the life of the loan to reflect economic and individual changes having an impact on the
borrowers’ abilities to honor the terms of their commitments. Management uses the risk grades as a tool for identifying
known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio and for determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

|
Maturities and Sensitivity of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates:

\
The following table summarizes the loan maturity distribution, by type, at December 31, 2003 and related interest rate

characteristics:

Over One Year

December 31,2003 One Year or Through Over Five
(Dollars in thousands) Less Five Years Years Total
Real estate - construction

and land development $ 10,774 $ 2,827 $ 244 $ 13,845
Real estate - other 23,332 37,886 28,583 89,801
Agricultural | 3,120 2,056 1,715 6,891
Commercial and industrial 18,020 23,965 6,494 48,479
Consumer j 7,082 18,681 1,562 27,325

All other loans (irﬁcluding overdrafts) 4.925 123 440 5,488
‘ $ 67253 3 85538 0§ 39,038 5 191,829

Loans maturing after one year with:

Fixed interes;t rates $ 75,368
Floating interest rates 49,208
3§ 124,576

Risk Elements .

|
Loans are defined as impaired when it is probable that a creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impairment of a loan is based on the present value of the expected future cash
flows discountedl at the loan’s effective interest rate or at the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Loans on the Corﬁpany’sproblem loan watch list are considered potentially impaired loans. These loans are evaluated in
determining whetherall outstanding principal and interest are expected to be collected. Loans are not considered impaired
if a minimal delay occurs and all amounts due, including accrued interest at the contractual interest rate for the period of
delay, are expected to be collected.

As of December!31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had nonaccrual loans of approximately $1,641,000 and $915,000,
respectively, andl loans that were past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest of approximately $2,315,000 and
$381,000, respectively, for which impairment had not been recognized. For loans to be in excess of 90 days delinquent
and still accruinglinterest, the borrowers must be either remitting payments although not able to get current, liquidation on
loans deemed to ibe well secured must be near completion or the Company has reason to believe that correction of the
delinquency status by the borrower is near. The additional interest income which would have been recognized into
earnings if the CQmpany’s nonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with their original terms is immaterial for all
years presented. The amount of both nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more were considered in computing

the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2003.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO - continued

Summary of Loan Loss Experience

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Total loans outstanding at

end of period $ 192304 § 162833 $ 117708 § 91319 § 75793
Average loans outstanding $ 182445 § 144266 § 106,130 § 87,180 $ 67,457
Balance of allowance for loan

losses at beginning of period $ 1452 §  1.112 $ 1,019 $ 922 $ 880
Loan losses:

Real estate 27 4 1 3 -

Commercial 368 145 57 125 126

Consumer and credit card 175 89 220 62 36

Total loan losses 570 238 278 190 162

Recoveries of loans previous

charged-off 35 43 23 16 14

Net charge-offs 535 195 255 174 148

Provision-charged to operations 857 535 348 271 190
Balance of allowance for loan

losses at end of period $ 1774 § 1452 § 1,112 § 1,019 § 922
Ratios:
Net charge-offs to average

loans outstanding 0.30% 0.14% 0.24% 0.20% 0.22%
Net charge-offs to loans at

end of year 0.28% 0.12% 0.22% 0.19% 0.20%
Allowance for loan losses to

average loans 0.98% 1.01% 1.05% 1.17% 1.37%
Allowance for loan losses to

loans at end of year 0.93% 0.89% 0.94% 1.12% 1.22%
Net charge-offs to allowance

for loan losses 30.16% 13.43% 22.93% 17.08% 16.05%
Net charge-offs to provisions

for loan losses 62.43% 36.45% 73.28% 64.21% 77.89%

Management has established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. The
allowance represents an amount which managementbelieves will be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing loans
that may become uncollectible. Management does not allocate specific percentages of our allowance for loan losses to the
various categories of loans but evaluates the adequacy on an overall portfolio basis utilizing several factors. The primary
factor considered is the credit risk grading system, which is applied to each loan. The amount of both nonaccrual loans
and loans past due 90 days or more is also considered. The historical loan loss experience, the size of our lending
portfolio, and current and anticipated economic conditions is also considered in determining the provision for loan losses.
The amount of the allowance is adjusted periodically based on changing circumstances. Recognized losses are charged to
the allowance for loan losses, while subsequent recoveries are added to the allowance.

Management regularly monitors past due and classified loans. However, it should be noted that no assurances can be
made that future charges to the allowance for loan losses or provisions for loan losses may not be significant to a particular
accounting period. AtDecember 31,2003 and 2002, management considers the allowances for loan losses adequate based
on their judgments, evaluations, and analysis of the loan portfolio.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO - continued

Management's judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance is based upon a number of assumptions about future events
which it believes to be reasonable, but which may or may not prove to be accurate. Because of the inherent uncertainty of
assumptions made during the evaluation process, there can be no assurance that loan losses in future periods will not
exceed the allowance for loan losses or that additional allocations will not be required. Our losses will undoubtedly vary

from our estimate$, and there is a possibility that charge-offs in future periods will exceed the allowance for loan losses as
estimated at any point in time,

; AVERAGE DAILY DEPOSITS

The following table summarizes the Company’s average daily deposits during the years ended December 31,2003, 2002,
and 2001. These totals include certificates of deposit $100,000 and over, which at December 31, 2003 totaled
$41,792,000. Of ithis total, scheduled maturities within three months were $1,945,000; within three to six months
$19,655,000; within six to twelve months $18,339,000; and $1,793,000 maturing thereafter.

|

2003 2002 2001
Average Average Average
Average Rate Average Rate Average Rate
! Amount Paid Amount Paid Amount Paid
Noninterest-beariﬁg demand $ 21,123 000% $ 19,568 0.00% $ 9,413 0.00%
Interest-bearing transaction accounts 69,954 2.28 24,978 2.52 11,375 0.78
Money market savings account 21,350 132 16,999 1.82 18,259 3.29
Other savings accounts 4,893 0.37 3,381 0.63 2,669 1.54
Certificates of deposit 79.317 273 81,084 3.82 82.664 5.67
Total deposits 3 196,137 § 146,010 $ 124,380

ADVANCES FROM THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank averaged$35,348,000 in 2003 and totaled $36,690,000 at December 31,
2003. The maximum amount of advances at any month-end was $36,690,000 in 2003 and the weighted average interest
rate was 4.23% in 2003. Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank averaged $22,254,000 in 2002 and totaled
$26,690,000 at DFcember 31,2002. The maximum amount of advances at any month-end was $26,690,000 in 2002 and
the weighted average interest rate was 5.19% in 2002.

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank are collateralized by one-to-four family residential mortgage loans and the
Company's investment in Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. Although we expect to continue using Federal Home Loan
Bank advances as a secondary funding source, core deposits will continue to be our primary funding source. Of the
$36,690,000 advances from Federal Home Loan Bank outstanding at December 31, 2003, $5,000,000 have scheduled
principal reductions in 2008 and the remaining balance matures after five years.

As discussed in the notes to the financial statements, the Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements
associated with Féderal Home Loan Bank advances maturing on March 1,2010, May 24, 2010 and March 22, 2011. The
interest rate swaps effectively converted the fixed interest rates on the advances to a variable rate. The variable rate was
3.41% at December 31, 2003 and is based on the three month LIBOR index.
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RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS

The following table shows the return on average assets (net income divided by average total assets), return on average
equity (net income divided by average daily equity), and equity to assets ratio (average daily equity divided by average
total assets) for the period indicated. Since its inception, the Company has not paid cash dividends.

2003 2002 2001
Return on average assets 0.62% 0.63% 0.67%
Return on average equity 8.09% 8.10% 9.61%
Equity to assets ratio 7.69% 7.79% 6.94%

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING ISSUES

We have adopted various accounting policies which govern the application of accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States in the preparation of our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies are described in the
footnotes to the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2003, as filed on our annual report on Form 10-KSB.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us which have a material impact on the

carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. We consider these accounting policies to be critical accounting policies. The

judgments and assumptions we use are based on historical experience and other factors, which we believe to be reasonable

under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgments and assumptions we make, actual results could differ from

these judgments and estimates which could have a material impact on our carrying values of assets and liabilities and our
results of operations.

We believe the allowance for loan losses is a critical accounting policy that requires the most significant judgments and
estimates used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Refer to the portion of this discussion that
addresses our allowance for loan losses for a description of our processes and methodology for determining our allowance
for loan losses.

INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS
USA Patriot Act of 2001

In October 2001, the USA Patriot Act of 2001 was enacted in response to the terrorist attacks in New York, Pennsylvania
and Washington D.C. which occurred on Sentember 11, 2001. The Patriot Act is intended to strengthen U.S. law
enforcement’s and the intelligence communities' abilities to work cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of fronts.
The potential impact of the Patriot Act on financial institutions of all kinds is significant and wide ranging. The Patriot
Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and imposes various regulations, including
standards for verifying client identification at account opening, and rules to promote cooperation among financial
institutions, regulators and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money
laundering. Compliance with the Patriot Act has added to the Company's operating expenses due to the requirement for
additional technology, paperwork and recordkeeping that is required.

From time to time, various bills are introduced in the United States Congress with respect to theregulation of financial
institutions. Certain of these proposals, if adopted, could significantlychange the regulation of banks and the financial
services industry. The Company cannot predict whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted, how these
proposals would affect the Company.
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‘ INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS - continued

SARBANES-OXI‘JJEY

In the summer of 2002, the United States Congress passed the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in response to corruption in some parts
of Corporate Amenca The Act was intended to require a change in corporate governance with those companies that must
report to the SEC. ;Not since the 1930°s has a single piece of reform legislation had such a dramatic impact on business
practices in this country This voluminous legislation has caused a dramatic re-tooling in the way companies, both large
and small, have to \dlsclose their financial information. It has also set in motion many deadlines for implementing far-
reaching changes in the reports that are filed with the SEC. The bottom line is that like most legislation, this Act will cost
small companies a disproportionate amount of expense to implement the changes required as compared to a large
company. While the effectiveness of the legislation will not become apparent for some time, rest assured that the cost of
implementation would have an immediate impact on the bottom line for the next several years.

CHANGE OF ACCOUNTANTS

Legislation and Seciurities Exchange Commission rules adopted in 2002 have significantly increased, and will continue to
increase, the regulatory burdens on audit firms that audit the financial statements of companies that are subject to the reporting
requirements of the|Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Consequently, many smaller audit firms are deciding to limit their audit
practice to companies that are not subject to the 1934 Act. Tourville, Simpson & Caskey, L.L.P., which served as the
Company’s principfal independent accountant since the Company’s inception, is one such firm. Accordingly, effective January
2, 2003, Tourville, Simpson & Caskey resigned as the Company’s principal independent public accountant. Elliott Davis,
LLC was engaged iby the Company on January 2, 2003 to audit the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2002, and was selected to audit the Company’s financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2003.
|

Tourville, Simpson|& Caskey, L.L.P.’s reports on the Company’s financial statements for each of the years ended December
31,2001 and 2000 neither contained an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was modified as to uncertainty, audit
scope, or accountmg principles. There were no disagreements with Tourville, Simpson & Caskey, L.L.P. on any matter of
accounting prmc1ples or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to
Tourville, Simpson & Caskey, L.L.P.’s satisfaction, would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the
disagreement in its reports.
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ENiott Davis, LLC
Advisors-CPAs-Consultants

= = 1901 Main Street, Suite 1650
ElliottDavis
Columbia, SC 29202-2227

Phone 803.256.0002
Fax 803.254.4724

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
HCSB Financial Corporation
Loris, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HCSB Financial Corporation and its subsidiary as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
HCSB Financial Corporation and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.
Sllett Aéw, XX

Elliott Davis, LLC
Columbia, South Carolina
January 22, 2004
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets: |
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds|sold

Total cash a:nd cash equivalents

Investment securities:
Securities available-for-sale
Nonmarketable equity securities

Total investinent securities
Loans held for sale

Loans receivable
Less allowanc‘ie for loan losses

Loans, net |

Premises, fumiﬁure, and equipment, net

Accrued interesjt receivable

Other assets

Total assetsi
Liabilities:

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing transaction accounts
Interest-bearing transaction accounts
Money market savings accounts
Other savings accounts
Certificates of deposit $100 and over
Other time deposits

Total deposits
Advances from|the Federal Home Loan Bank
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 4, 10 and 11)

Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock| $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized;
1,663,610 ancii 1,469,767 shares issued and outstanding
in 2003 and 2002, respectively
Capital surplus|
Retained eamngs
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Treasury stock,i at cost
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

December 31,
2003 2002

$ 12,741 $ 8,243
22.832 11,350
35,573 19,593
28,115 18,060
1,919 1,394
30,034 19.454

475 -
191,829 162,833
(1.774) (1.452)
190,055 161,381
9,377 7,908
1,671 1,585
2,529 1.677

§ 269714 3 211,598

$ 23,149 $ 16,714

72,941 58,329
20,943 18,798
5,391 3,534
41,792 21,172
45.715 45,614
209,931 164,161
36,690 26,690
351 314
1,233 583
248,205 191,748
16 15
21,437 17,652
- 2,067

56 122
- (6)
21,509 19,850

$ 269714 5211598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest income:
Loans, including fees
Investment securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Nonmarketable equity securities
Federal funds sold
Time deposits with other banks

Total

Interest expense:
Deposits
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

Total
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Credit life insurance commissions
Gain on sale of residential mortgage loans
Brokerage commissions
Other fees and commissions
Gain on sale of securities available-for-sale
Other

Total

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Net occupancy
Furniture and equipment
Other operating

Total
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income

Net income per common share

Average common shares outstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
$ 13,112 $ 11,500
662 496

163 158

69 55

231 155

) 2

14,237 12,366
4,045 4,056
1,495 1,155
5,540 5211
8,697 7,155

857 535

7.840 6.620
1,261 1,107

151 135

132 170

115 65

184 174

92 8

67 49

2,002 1,708
4,319 3,746

481 426

708 645

1,928 1.733
7,436 6,550
2,406 1,778

838 617

s __ 1,568 § 1,161
$ 094 $ 0.77
1,663,177 1,504,594



HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
‘ Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars in thousiands,
except share amounts)
Balance, December 31, 2001

Net income

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax expense of $55

Comprehensive income
Payment for fractiional shares
Issuance of 5% stock dividend
Issuance of stock

Stock issuance cdsts

Purchase of treasury stock
(277 shares)

Balance, Decemﬁer 31, 2002
Net income i

Other comprehenisive income,
(loss) net of tax benefit of $39

Comprehensive iﬁcome
Payment for fractional shares
Issuance of stock:

Issuance of 5% stock dividend
Sale of treasury stjock

N |
Reimbursement of stock
issuance costs

Declaration of 7.$% stock
dividend on January 18, 2004

Balance, Decemﬁer 31,2003

Accumulated
other
compre-
Common Stock Capital Retained hensive Treasury
Shares Amount surplus earnings income stock Total
1,052,175 $ 11 § 8,793 $ 2,063 $ 28 $ - $ 10.895
1,161 1,161
94 94
1,255
(16) (16)
51,880 1 1,141 (1,141) i
365,712 3 8,042 8,045
(324) (324)
(6) (6)
1,469,767 15 17,652 2,067 122 (6) 19,850
1,568 1,568
66) (66)
1,502
(18) (18)
4,829 106 106
72,948 1,605 (1,605) -
6 6
63 63
116,066 1 2.011 (2.012) -
1663610 S 16 $21437 S - 8 56 S $_ 21,509

'iThe accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses
Deferred income tax provision (benefit)
Depreciation and amortization expense
Premium amortization less discount accretion
Amortization of net deferred loan costs
Net (gain) loss on sale of securities available-for-sale
Loss (gain) on sale of other real estate owned
Loss (gain) on disposal of premises and equipment
Increase in interest receivable
Increase in interest payable
Increase in other assets
Increase in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securities available-for-sale
Maturities of securities available-for-sale
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale
Net increase in loans to customers
Purchase of premises, furniture and equipment
Proceeds from sale of premises, furniture and equipment
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned
Decrease in time deposits with other banks
Purchase of nonmarketable equity securities

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in demand deposits, interest-bearing
transaction accounts and savings accounts
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits
Net decrease in federal funds purchased
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Proceeds from stock issuance
Purchase (sale) of treasury stock
Stock issuance (reimbursement) of costs
Cash paid for fractional shares

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
$ 1,568 $ 1,161
857 535
(22) 46
441 425
332 39

9 27

(92) (®

35 3)

13 63

(86) (123)

37 94
(650) (227)
689 43
3,131 2072
(36,231) (32,545)
18,069 29,459
7,737 2,208
(30,579) (45,744)
(2,025) (2,902)
102 43
349 351

- 699
(500) (604)
(43,078) (49.033)
25,049 55,945
20,721 (11,857)
- (2,310)
10,000 12,090
106 8,046

6 (6)

63 (324)
(18) (16)
55.927 61,568
15,980 14,607
19.593 4,986
3 35573 3 19,593




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - OR¢ANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
HCSB Financial Corporation (the Company) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Horry County State Bank (the Bank). The
Company was ﬁlcomorated on June 10, 1999. The Bank was incorporated on December 18, 1987, and opened for
operations on Jjanuary 4, 1988. The principal business activity of the Company is to provide commercial banking
services in Horry and Marion Counties, South Carolina, and in Columbus and Brunswick Counties, North Carolina. The

Bank is a state-chartered bank, and its deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
|

Management’s Estimates - In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date and
income and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for
loan losses, including valuation allowances for impaired loans, and the carrying amount of real estate acquired in
connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. Management must also make estimates in determining the
estimated useful lives and methods for depreciating premises and equipment.

While managementuses available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, future additions to
the allowance may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowances for losses on loans and
foreclosed real estate. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowances based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably
possible that the allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate may change materially in the near term.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk - Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located within
Horry and Marion Counties in South Carolina and Columbus and Brunswick Counties in North Carolina. The types of
securities in which the Company invests are discussed in Note 3. The types of lending that the Company engages in are
discussed in Note 4. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

Investment Securities - [nvestment securities available-for-sale by the Company are carried at amortized cost and
adjusted to their estimated fair value. The unrealized gain or loss is recorded in shareholders’ equity net of the deferred
tax effects. Management does not actively trade securities classified as available-for-sale, but intends to hold these
securities for an|indefinite period of time and may sell them prior to maturity to achieve certain objectives. Reductions in
fair value considered by managementto be other than temporary are reported as a realized loss and a reduction in the cost
basis in the security. The adjusted cost basis of securities available-for-sale is determined by specific identification and is
used in computing the realized gain or loss from a sales transaction.

Nonmarketable Equity Securities - Nonmarketable equity securities include the Company’s investments in the stock of
the Federal Horﬁe Loan Bank and Community Financial Services. The stocks are carried at cost because they have no
quoted market value and no ready market exists. Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock is a condition of
borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank, and the stock is pledged to collateralize the borrowings. Dividends
received on Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Community Financial Services stock are included as a separate
component in irterest income.

At December 3 ], 2003 and 2002, the investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock was $1,834,000 and $1,334,000,
respectively, and the investment in Community Financial Servicesstock was $60,000 in both years. During 2003, the
Company purch:ased stock in another community bank totaing $25,000.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Loans held for Sale - Loans held for sale consist of residential mortgage loans the Company originates for sale to
secondary market investors. They are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized losses, if
any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. Fees collected in conjunction with origination
activities are deferred as part of the cost basis of the loan and recognized when the loan is sold. Gains or losses on sales
are recognized when the loans are sold and are determined as the difference between the sales price and the carrying
value of the loans.

The Company issues rate lock commitmentsto borrowers based on prices quoted by secondary market investors. When
rates are locked with borrowers, a sales commitment is immediately entered (on a best efforts basis) at a specified price
with a secondary market investor. Accordingly, any potential liabilities associated with rate lock commitments are offset
by sales commitments to investors.

Loans Receivable - Loans receivable are stated at their unpaid principal balance. Interest income on loans is computed
based upon the unpaid principal balance. Interest income isrecorded in the period earned.

The accrual of interest income is generally discontinued when a loan becomes contractually 90 days past due as to
principal or interest. Managementmay elect to continue the accrual of interest when the estimated net realizable value of
collateral exceeds the principal balance and accrued interest.

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs (principally salaries and employee
benefits) are deferred and amortized to income over the contractual life of the related loans or commitments, adjusted for
prepayments, using the straightline method.

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for the Impairment of a
Loan, and SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures,
loans are defined as impaired when it is probable that a creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. All loans are subject to this criteria except for “smaller balance homogeneous
loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment” and loans “measured at fair value or at the lower of cost or fair
value.” The Company considers its consumer installment portfolio, credit card loans, and home equity lines as such
exceptions. Therefore, the real estate and commercial loan portfolios are primarily affected by these statements.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the.loan’s
effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. When management determines
that a loan is impaired, the difference between the Company’s investment in the related loan and the present value of the
expected future cash flows, or the fair value of the collateral, is charged to bad debt expense with a corresponding entry
to the allowance for loan losses. The accrual of interest is discontinued on an impaired loan when management
determines the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. There were no impaired loans at
December 31, 2003 or 2002 that were material to the financial statements.

Allowance for Loan Losses - An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level deemed appropriate by management
to provide adequately for known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The allowance is based upon a continuing
review of past loan loss experience, current economic conditions which may affect the borrowers’ ability to pay, and the
underlying collateral value of the loans. Loans deemed uncollectible are charged off and deducted from the allowance.
The provision for loan losses, including provisions for loan impairment, and recoveries on loans previously charged off,
are added to the allowance.

Premises, Furniture and Equipment - Premises, furniture and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. The provision for depreciation is computed by the straight-line method. Rates of depreciation are generally
based on the following estimated useful lives: buildings - 40 years; furniture and equipment - 3 to 25 years, The cost of
assets sold or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation is eliminated from the accounts, and the
resulting gains or losses are reflected in the income statement.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to current expense as incurred, and the costs of major renewals and improvements
are capitalized.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned includes real estate acquired through foreclosure. Other real estate
owned is initially|recorded at the lower of cost (principal balance of the former loan plus costs of improvements) or fair
value, less estimated costs to sell.

Any write-downsi at the dates of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Expenses to maintain such
assets, subsequent write-downs, and gains and losses on disposal are included in other expenses.

Derivative Financial Instruments - The Company has entered into certain interest rate swap agreements which are
derivative financial instruments ("derivatives"). The derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value.
On the date the d&rivative contract is entered into, the Company designates the derivative as a hedgeof fair value of a
recognized asset or liability ("fair value hedge"). Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective as - and
that is designated|and qualifies - as a fair value hedge, along with the loss or gain on the hedged asset or liability that is
attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded in current-period earnings.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedged transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives that
are designated as|fair value hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. The derivatives in which the
Company is a cojunterparty qualify for the "shortcut" method of assessing the ongoing effectiveness of its hedging

relationship with the underlying hedged item.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when (1) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised; (2) management determines that designation of the derivative as a hedge instrument is no longer appropriate;
or (3) the underlying hedged item is liquidated. When hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative is carried at its
fair value on the balance sheet, with changes in its fair value recognized in currentperiod earnings.

Income and Expense Recognition - The accrual method of accounting is used for all significant categories of income
and expense. Immaterial amounts of insurance commissions and other miscellaneous fees are reported when received.

Income Taxes - Amounts provided for income taxes are based on income reported for financial statement purposes.
Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis
of the Company’siassets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of
management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management
has determined that it is more likely than not that the entire deferred tax asset at December 31, 2003, will be realized, and
accordingly, has not established a valuation allowance. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of
changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Advertising Expense - Advertising and public relations costs are generally expensed as incurred. External costs incurred
in producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs relating to direct
mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent. Advertising and public relations costs of
$127,000 and $187 000, were included in the Company's results of operations for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net Income Per Share - Net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of
shares outstanding during the year. Retroactive recognition has been given for the effects of all stock dividends in
computing the weighted-average number of shares. The Company has no instruments which are considered common
stock equivalents land therefore, diluted earnings per share is not presented.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Comprehensive Income - Accounting principles generally require recognized income, expenses, gains, and losses to be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items,
along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 __ 2002
Unrealized gains on

securities available-for-sale 3 (13) $ 157
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses

realized in net income (92) (8)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities (105) 149
Tax effect 39 — (3%
Net-of-tax amount §  (66) s 94

Statements of Cash Flows - For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers certain highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include amounts
due from banks and federal funds sold.

The following summarizes supplemental cash flow information:

Years ended
: December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002

Cash paid for interest $ 5,503 $ 5,117
Cash paid for income taxes 714 682

Supplemental noncash investing and financing activities:
Foreclosures on loans 564 397

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments - In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into off-balance-
sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. These financial instruments
are recorded in the financial statements when they become payable by the customer.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In December 2002, FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure,” an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also amends the disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 123 and Accounting Pronouncement Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting”, to require
disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to
stock-based employee compensation on reported net income and earnings per share in annual and interim financial
statements. While SFAS No. 148 does not amend SFAS No. 123 to require companies to account for employee stock
options using the fair value method, the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are applicable to all companies with
stock-based employee compensation, regardless of whether they account for that compensation using the fair value
method of SFAS No. 123 or the intrinsic value method of APB Opinion No. 25. The provisions of SFAS No. 148 are
effective for annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002, and for financial reports
containing condensed financial statements for interim periods beginning after Decemberl5, 2002.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts and loan commitments that relate to the origination of mortgage loans held for
sale, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for contracts entered into or
modified after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on the financial condition or
operating results of the Company.

In May 2003, thE FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain
financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). Many of those instruments were
previously classified as equity. SFAS No. 150 is generally effective for financial instrumentsentered into or modified
after May 31, 20b3, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003.
The adoption of| SFAS No. 150 did not have a material impact on the financial condition or operating results of the
Company.

| . .
In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure

Requirements fc1>r Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”. FIN No. 45 requires a
company, at the time it issues a guarantee, to recognize an initial liability for the fair value of obligations assumed under
the guarantee add elaborates on existing disclosure requirements related to guarantees and warranties. The initial
recognition requirements of FIN No. 45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The
disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of periods ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption
of FIN No. 45 did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN No. 46 requires a
variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from
the variable interest entity's activities or entitled to receive a majority of the entity's residual returns, or both. FIN No. 46
also requires disclosures about variable interest entities that a company is not required to consolidate, but in which it has
a significant variable interest. FIN No. 46 provides guidance for determining whether an entity qualifies as a variable
interest entity byjconsidering, among other considerations, whether the entity lacks sufficient equity or its equity holders
lack adequate decision-making ability. The consolidation requirements of FIN No. 46 apply immediately to variable
interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to existing entities in the first fiscal
year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in all financial
statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established. The adoption of
FIN No. 46 did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial paition or results of operations.

Risks and Uncertainties - In the normal course of its business, the Company encounters two significant types of risks:
economic and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market
risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at
different speeds, 'or on different basis, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company's
loan portfolio that results from borrower's inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market
risk reflects char@ges in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the
Company.

The Company is| subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. These regulations can and do change
significantly from period to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies,
which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances and
operating restrictions from the regulators’ judgments based on information available to them at the time of their
examination.

Reclassifications - Certain captions and amounts in the 2002 financial statements were reclassified to conform with the
2003 presentation.
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 2 - CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required by regulation to maintain an average cash reserve balance based on a percentage of deposits. At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, the requirements were satisfied by vault cash.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Securities available-for-sale consisted of the following:

Amortized Gross Unrealized Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2003
Securities of U.S. government agencies
and corporations $ 57233 $ 2 $ 13 $ 5,222
Mortgage-backed securities 17,159 54 84 17,129
Equity securities 831 - 11 820
Obligations of state and local governments 4.803 142 1 4,944
Total $_28026 % 198 S 109 § 28115
December 31, 2002
Securities of U.S. government agencies
and corporations $ 6,580 $ 32 $ - $ 6,612
Mortgage-backed securities 7,647 67 1 7,713
Obligations of state and local governments 3.639 108 12 3,735
Total § 17866 § 207 S 13 § 18,060

The following is a summary of maturities of securities available-for-sale as of December 31, 2003. The amortized cost
and estimated fair values are based on the contractual maturity dates. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalty.

Securities

Available-For-Sale
Amortized Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Due in less than one year $ 422 8 423
Due after one year but within five years 5,483 5,498
Due after five years but within ten years 3,251 3,348
Due after ten years 1,711 1,717
10,867 10,986
Mortgage-backed securities 17.159 17,129
Total $ 28,026 s 28115
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NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES - continued

The following tjab]e shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category, and length of time
that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2003.

Securities Available for Sale

Less than Twelve months
: twelve months or more Total
| Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
(Dollars in thousands) Fair value __ losses Fair value losses Fair value losses
Securities of U.S. government
agencies and L:orporations $ 2144 § 13 % - 3 - % 2144 § 13
Mortgage-backed securities 11,202 84 - - 11,202 84
Equity securities 831 11 - - 831 11
Obligations of state and
local governments 250 1 - - 250 1
Total ; $ 14427 S 109 $ - 8 - 8 14427 $§ 109

AtDecember 3 ] , 2003, and 2002, investment securities with a book value 0of $15,542,775 and $3,113,000, respectively,
and a market vajlue of $15,544,973 and $3,199,000, respectively, were pledged as collateral to secure public deposits.

Gross realized gains on sales of available-for-sale securities were $92,000 and $8,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
There were no gross realized losses on sales of available-for-sale securities in 2003 and 2002. Proceeds from the sale of
securities totaled $7,737,000 and $2,208,000 in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans consisted of the following:
! December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Real estate - cénstruction and land development $ 13,845 $ 17,032
Real estate - mortgage and commercial 89,801 65,245
Agricultural 6,891 5,496
Commercial and industrial 48,479 48,403
Consumer 3 27,325 25,020
All other loans (including overdrafts) 5.488 1,637
Total gross loans $ 191,829 $ 162,833

Certain parties (principally certain directors and officers of the Company, their immediate families, and business
interests) were loan customers and had other transactions in the normal course of business with the Company. Related
party loans are rqlade on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than normal risk of collectibility. The
aggregate dollan amounts of loans to related parties were $2,707,000 and $994,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Durmg 2003, $1,877,000 of new loans were made to related parties, and repayments totaled $164,000.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - continued

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses are summarized below:
Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,452 $ 1,112
Provision charged to operations 857 535
Recoveries on loans previously charged off 35 43
Loans charged off (570) (238)
Balance, end of year s 1,774 S 1452

Loans on the Company’s problem loan watch list are considered potentially impaired loans. These loans are evaluated in
determining whether all outstanding principal and interest are expected to be collected. Loans are not considered
impaired if a minimal delay occurs and all amounts due, including accrued interest at the contractual interest rate for the
period of the delay, are expected to be collected.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had nonaccrual loans of approximately $1,641,000 and $915,000,
respectively, and loans that were contractually past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest of approximately
$2,315,000 and $381,000, respectively, for which impairmenthad not been recognized. The additional interest income
which would have been recognized into earnings if the Company’snonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with
their original terms is immaterial for all years presented. AtDecember 31,2003 and 2002, there were no impaired loans
that were material to the Company's financial statement.

The majority of the total loans contractually past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest relate to a group of loans
to one borrower. Most of the loans are secured by real estate. Management is working with the borrower to dissolve
portions of the collateral. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses has been funded adequately for these
specific loans.

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the balance sheets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitmentsto extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitmentsissued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer
to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending
loans to customers. The fair value of standby letters of credit is insignificant.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitmentamounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon
extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty.

Collateral held for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant, equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. The following table summarizes the
Company’s off-balance-sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Commitments to extend credit $ 23,323 $ 10452
Standby letters of credit 835 443
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NOTE S - PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Premises, furniture and equipment consisted of the following;:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Land | $ 3,106 § 3,199
Buildings and land improvements 4,775 3,597
Furniture and equipment 3,125 2,778
Construction in progress 820 360
| 11,826 9,934
Less accumulated depreciation (2,449) (2,026)
Premises and %equipment, net $ 9377 $ 7,908

Depreciation ex?ense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $441,000 and $425,000, respectively.

In 2003 and 2002, the Company capitalized $22,000 and $2,000, respectively, of interest during the construction and
renovation of new branches.

NOTE 6 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets conjsisted of the following:
! December 31,

(Dollars in thozitsands) 2003 2002
Cash value of life insurance $ 846 $ 800
Other real estate owned 390 210
Prepaid expenses 201 125
Unamortized software 264 285
Net deferred tax asset 227 123
Other ? 601 134
Total S 259 S8 167

NOTE 7 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company maintains an overall interest-rate risk-management strategy that incorporates the use of derivatives to
minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest-rate volatility. As part of this strategy,
the Company entered certain interest rate swap agreements during 2003. Such interest rate swaps are derivative financial
instruments ("derivatives"). Interest rate swaps generally involve the exchange of fixed and variable rate interest
payments between two parties, based on a common notional amount and maturity date. The Company's goal is to manage
interest-rate sensitivity by modifying the repricing or maturity characteristics of specific balance-sheet assets and
liabilities so that the net-interest margin is not, on a material basis, adversely affected by movements in interest rates.
The interest-rate swaps entered by the Company converted certain nonprepayable fixed rate long term debt to floating
rates. Asaresult of interest-rate fluctuations, hedged assets and liabilities will appreciate or depreciate in market value.
The effect of this unrealized appreciation or depreciation will generally be offset by income or loss on the derivatives that
are linked to the hedged assets and liabilities. The Company views this strategy as a prudent management of interest-rate
sensitivity, such/that earnings are not exposed to undue risk presented by changes in interest rates.
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NOTE 7 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES - continued

By using derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk. If the counterparty fails to perform,
credit risk is equal to the extent of the fair-value gain in a derivative. When the fair value of a derivative contract is
positive, this generally indicates that the counterparty owes the Company, and, therefore, creates a repayment risk for the
Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the counterparty and, therefore, it
has no repaymentrisk. The Company minimizes the credit (or repayment) risk in derivative instruments by entering into
transactions with high-quality counterparties that are reviewed by the Company's credit committee.

Market risk is the adverse effect that a change in interest rates, currency, or implied volatility rates has on the value ofa
financial instrument. The Company manages the market risk associated with interest rate swap contracts by establishing
and monitoring limits as to the types and degree of risk that may be undertaken. The Company periodically measures this
risk by using a value-at-risk methodology.

The Company's derivatives activities are monitored by its risk-management committee as part of that committee's
oversight of the Company's asset/liability and treasury functions. The Company's asset/liability committee is responsible
for implementing various hedging strategies that are developed through its analysis of data from financial simulation
models and other internal and industry sources. The resulting hedging strategies are then incorporated into the
Company's overall interest-rate risk-management and trading strategies.

The interest rate swap agreements provide for the Company to make payments at a variable rate determined by a
specified index (three month LIBOR) in exchange for receiving payments at a fixed rate of 5.8%. During 2003, the
Company recognized $105,000 as a reduction of interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank Advances as aresult of its
interest rate swaps.

At December 31, 2003, the information pertaining to outstanding interest rate swap agreements used to hedge fixed rate
debt is as follows:

2003
Notional amount $ 14,600,000
Weighted average fixed (receive) rate 3.41%
Weighted average variable (pay) rate 1.11%
Weighted average maturity in years 6.6
Unrealized gain (loss) relating to interest rate swaps 83

No interest rate swap agreements were used by the Company prior to 2003. At December 31, 2003, the unrealized gain
of $83,000 related to interest rate swaps was recorded in derivative assets and other liabilities by the same amount.

Risk managementresults for the year ended December 31, 2003 related to the balance sheet hedging of long-term debt
indicate that the hedges were 100% effective and that there was no component of the derivative instruments' gain or loss
which was excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

NOTE 8 - DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2003, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

Maturing In Amount
2004 $ 81,602
2003 3,970
2006 1,170
2007 284
2008 and thereafter 481

Total 3 87,507

Overdrawn transaction accounts in the amount of $42,000 and $119,000 were classified as loans as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.
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NOTE 9 - ADVANCES FROM THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from t;he Federal Home Loan Bank consisted of the following:

(Dollars in thozjzsands) Interest December 31,

Convertible advances maturing on: Rate 2003 __2002
March 11,2008 3.09%  $ 5,000 $ -
March 1, 2010 5.92% 5,000 5,000
May 24,2010 6.49% 4,600 4,600
March 22, 2011 5.05% 5,000 5,000
January, 17, 2012 3.875% 5,000 5,000
July 23, 2012, 3.81% 5,000 5,000
August 4, 2012 3.56% 2,090 2,090
January 30, 2013 3.36% 5.000 -

Total 3 336,690 3 __26,690

Interest is payable quarterly. Initially all advances bear interest at a fixed rate; however, the rate can be converted to a
floating rate after a certain period. As of December 31, 2003, all advances were bearing fixed rates of interest.

As of December 3 1, 2003, scheduled principal reductions include $5,000,000 in 2008 and the remainder after five years.

As collateral, the Company has pledged its portfolio of first mortgage one-to-four family residential loans aggregating
$37,669,000 at December 31, 2003, as well as half of its commercial real estate loan portfolio, totaling $23,472,000 at
December 31, 2003. Additionally, it has pledged its investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock with a carrying value
of $1,834,000. °

As discussed in Note 7, the Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements associated with Federal Home Loan
Bank advances maturing on March 1, 2010, May 24, 2010 and March 22, 2011. The interest rate swaps effectively
converted the ﬁxled interest rates on the advances to a variable rate. The variable rate was 3.41% at December 31, 2003
and is based on the three month LIBOR index.

NOTE 10 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

On May 15, 1997:, the Company entered into a lease agreement for land on which to operate its Tabor City branch. The
lease had an initial five-year term that expired June 5, 2002, and the Company chose to exercise its option for a five-year
renewal of the lejasé at that time. In December 2002, the Company and the property owners chose to negotiate a new
lease that began January 5, 2003 and ends January 5, 2008 with the Company having an option for nine additional five-
year renewal peri}ods thereafter. Subsequentto the date of the renegotiated lease, the lease was amended and resulted in a
new rental amount of $1,000 per month through January 5, 2008. The lease gives the Company the first right of refusal
to purchase the property at an unimproved value if the owners decide to sell. The Company also pays applicable property
taxes on the property.

On February 4, %002, the Company entered into an annual lease agreement to operate its Myrtle Beach branch in a
temporary location. This annual lease has an option for twelve additional renewal terms of one month each. The
Company expects to have these one-month renewals in force through April 2004 and pays a lease payment of $3,500 per

month.

Expected future minimum lease payments over the next four years for these long-term operating leases are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) Amount
2004 3 26
2005 12
2006 ‘ 12
2007 ‘ 12

Total s 62
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NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may, from time to time, become a party to legal claims and disputes. At
December 31, 2003, management was not aware of any pending or threatened litigation or unasserted claims that could
result in losses, if any, that would be material to the finandal statements.

At December 31, 2003, the Company has a new branch under construction in Myrtle Beach. The Company believes

construction will be complete in April 2004. The total contract price for the branch is $1,850,000. Therefore, estimated
additional costs to complete the branch are approximately $1,030,000as of December 31, 2003.

NOTE 12 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stock Dividends - On January 18, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a 7.5% stock dividend payable on March 12,
2004, to shareholders of record at February 13, 2004. Asaresult of the stock dividend, 116,066 shares were issued. The
financial statements as of December 31, 2003 were adjusted to reflect such transaction and resulted in a reclassification of
$2,011,000 from retained earnings to common stock and capital surplus. All per share amounts have been adjusted to
reflect this dividend.

Restrictions on Dividends - South Carolina banking regulations restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid to
shareholders. All of the Bank’s dividends to HCSB Financial Corporation are payable only from the undivided profits of
the Bank. At December 31, 2003, the Bank’s undivided profits were $5,748,242. The Bank is authorized to pay cash
dividends up to 100% of net income in any calendar year without obtaining the prior approval of the Commissioner of
Banking provided that the Bank received a composite rating of one or two at the last Federal or State regulatory
examination. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, the amounts of loans or advances from the Bank to the parent
company are also restricted.

NOTE 13 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments
by the regulators about components, risk-weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum ratios
(set forth in the table below) of Tier 1 and total capital as a percentage of assets and off-balance-sheet exposures, adjusted
for risk-weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Tier 1 capital of the Bank consists of common shareholders’ equity,
excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale, minus certain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital
consists of the allowance for loan losses subject to certain limitations. Total capital for purposes of computing the capital
ratios consists of the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

The Bank is also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on quarterly average assets (as defined), which is
known as the leverage ratio. Only the strongest institutions are allowed to maintain capital at the minimumrequirement
of 3%. All others are subject to maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum,

As of the most recent regulatory examination, the Bank was deemed well capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-
based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events that management
believes have changed the Bank’s categories.
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NOTE 13 - CAP]?ITAL REQUIREMENTS - continued

The following table summarizes the capital ratios and the regulatory minimum requirementsfor the Company and the
Bank. ‘

To Be Well-
Minimum Requirement Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
‘ Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
(Dollars in thousdnds) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 20Q3
The Company
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 23,226 11.46% § 16,209 8.00% $ N/A N/A
Tier | capital (tq risk-weighted assets) 21,453 10.59 8,104 4.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 21,453 8.21 10,452 4.00 N/A N/A
The Bank
Total capital (to “risk-weighted assets) $ 21,790 10.76%  $ 16,200 8.00% $ 20,249 10.00%
Tier | capital (tq risk-weighted assets) 20,017 9.89 8,100 4.00 12,150 6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 20,017 7.66 10,449 4.00 13,062 5.00
December 31, 2002
The Company
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 21,179 12.52% § 13,534 8.00% $ N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 19,727 11.66 6,767 4.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 19,727 9.12 8,452 4.00 N/A N/A
The Bank
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 19,783 11.68% $ 13,534 8.00% § 16,918 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (td risk-weighted assets) 18,331 10.83 6,767 4.00 10,151 6.00

Tier 1 capital (tq average assets) 18,331 8.67 8,452 4.00 10,565 5.00

NOTE 14 - RET]jIREMENT AND BENEFITS

Trusteed Retirement Savings Plan - The Bank has a trustee retirement savings plan which provides retirement benefits
to substantially all officers and employees who meet certain age and service requirements. The plan includes a “salary
reduction” feature pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the plan and present policies,
participants are permitted to contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation. At its discretion, the Company can
make matching contributions up to 4% of the participants’ compensation. The Company charged $118,000 and $93,000,
to earnings for thé retirement savings plan in 208 and 2002, respectively.

Directors Deferred Compensation Plan - The Company has a deferred compensation plan whereby directors may elect

to defer the payment of their fees. Under the terms of the plan, the Company accrues an expense equal to the amount
deferred plus an interest component based on the prime rate of interest at the beginning of each year. The Company has

also purchased life insurance contracts on each of the participating directors. At December 31,2003 and 2002, $345,000

and $273,000, respectively, of directors’ fees were deferred and are included in other liabilities.

Performance Coﬁlgensation for Stakeholders Plan - The Company implemented an employee bonus program in 2003
which it refers to as its Stakeholder Plan. The plan pays employees based on a schedule of key performance indicators

they are required to meet in order to be rewarded. The plan accrues for its employee bonuses based on a percentage of
each employee's annual salary. The plan has a fiscal year ending on December 31, and pays out on January 30 of the
following year. At December 31, 2003, the plan had an accrued payout of $62,000.
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NOTE 15 - OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Advertising and promotion
Stationery, printing, and postage
Telephone

Director and advisory fees
Insurance

ATM services

Courier services

Other

Total

NOTE 16 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Currently payable:
Federal
State

Total current
Deferred income taxes
Income tax expense

Income tax expense is allocated as follows:
To continuing operations
To shareholders’ equity

Total
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Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002

$ 369 $ 361
305 301
135 114
115 97
71 90
84 71
76 63
773 636

$ 1028 § 1733

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002

$ 790 607
73 56

863 663

(64) 9

b 799 672
$ 838 617
(39) S5

3 799 672
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NOTE 16 - INCOME TAXES - continued
The componentfs of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

| December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance fqr loan losses $ 159 $ 386
Net capitalized loan costs 30 38
State net operating loss 4 9
Deferred directors' fees 40 93
Organizational costs 1 5
Nonaccruing|interest 13 25
|
Total deferred tax assets 247 556
Deferred tax liébilities:
Accumulated depreciation 115 256
Gain on sale pf real estate 25 73
Software amortization 15 32
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale 33 72
Total deferred tax liabilities 188 433
Net deferred tax asset N 59 s 123

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of future deductible differences and, if it is more likely than not that a

tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable

value. Managementhas determined that it is more likely than not that the entire deferred tax asset at December 31,2003

and 2002 will be realized and, accordingly, has not established a valuation allowance. Deferred tax assets are included in

other assets. |

A reconciliationj between the income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the Federal statutory rates of
34% to income before income taxes follows:

: Years ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002

Tax expense af statutory rate $ 818 $ 604
State income tz;ix, net of federal income tax benefit 48 44
Tax-exempt interest income 57 55
Other (85) (86)
Income tax provision h 838 3 617

NOTE 17 - UNDSED LINES OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks
totaling $9,000,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to fourteen day basis for general corporate purposes.
The lenders have reserved the right not to renew their respective lines. The Company may also borrow an additional
$17,229,000 from the Federal Home Loan Bank based on a predetermined formula. Advances are subject to approval by
the Federal Home Loan Bank and may require the Company to pledge additional collateral.
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NOTE 18 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. Because no market
value exists for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments:
Cash and Due from Banks - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Federal Funds Sold and Purchased - Federal funds sold and purchased are for a term of one day and the carrying
amount approximates the fair value. '

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale - For securities available-for-sale, fair value equals the carrying amount which
is the quoted market price. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are basedon quoted market prices of
comparable securities.

Nonmarketable Equity Securities - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value since no ready market
exists for these securities.

Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale - Fair values of mortgage loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from
investors or market prices.

Loans Receivable - For certain categories of Joans, such as variable rate loans which are repriced frequently and have no
significant change in credit risk and credit card receivables, fair values are based on the carrying amounts. The fair value
of other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made to the borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposits - The fair value of demand deposits, savings, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at
the reporting date. The fair values of certificates of deposit are-estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies current interest rates to a schedule of aggregated expected maturities.

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank - For the portion of borrowings immediately callable, fair value is based
on the carrying amount. The fair value of the portion maturing at a later date is estimated using a discounted cash flow
calculation that applies the interest rate of the immediately callable portion to the portion maturing at the future date.
Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable - The carrying value of these instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit - The contractual amount is a reasonable estimate of fair
value for the instruments because commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are issued on a short-term or

floating rate basis and include no unusual credit risks.

Interest Rate Swaps - Fair values are based on the present value of future cash flows based on the interest rate spread
between the fixed rate and the floating rate.
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NOTE 18 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The carrying vejilues and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
! Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
| Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 12,741  $ 12,741 % 8,243 $ 8,243
Federal funds sold 22,832 22,832 11,350 11,350
Investment securities available-for-sale 28,115 28,115 18,060 18,060
Nonmarke:table equity securities 1,919 1,919 1,394 1,394
Loans and loans held-for-sale 192,304 194,449 162,833 164,521
Accrued interest receivable 1,671 1,671 1,585 1,585
Other asse;ts - interest rate swaps 83 83 - -

Financial Liabilities:
Demand dclaposit, interest-bearing
transaction, and savings accounts $ 122,424  § 122,424  § 97,375 $ 97,375

Certificates of deposit 87,507 87,526 66,786 67,026
Advances from the Federal Home

Loan Bank 36,690 36,631 26,690 26,690
Accrued initerest payable 351 351 314 314
Other liabilities - interest rate swaps 83 83 - -

Notional Estimated Fair Notional Estimated Fair
‘ Amount Value Amount Value
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments:

Commitments to extend credit $ 23323 $ - %8 10452 S -
Standby letters of credit 835 - 443 -
Interest rate swaps 14,600 83 - -
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NOTE 19 - HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION (PARENT COMPAANY ONLY)

Presented below are the condensed financial statements for HCSB Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only).

Condensed Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets
Cash
Investment in banking subsidiary
Nonmarketable equity securities
Premises
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Shareholders’ equity

Condensed Statements of Income

(Dollars in thousands)
Income
Dividends from banking subsidiary

Expenses
Other expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary

Income tax benefit
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary

Net income

-45.-

December 31,

2003 2002
$ 1,306 $ 1,126
20,086 18,562
25 -
- 92
92 70

$ 21509 §__ 19.850

$ 21509 5 19.8%0

Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
$ 18 $ 2
8 64 42
(46) (40)
(19) (14)
1,595 1,187
s 1,568 3 1,161




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 19 - HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) - continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income !

Adjustments|to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary
Increase in other assets
Decrease in other liabilities

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows frojm investing activities:
Purchase of nonmarketable equity securities
Purchase of land and building
Proceeds fro:m sale of land and building

Net cash provided (used) from investing activities

Cash flows frdm financing activities:
Proceeds from stock issuance
Transfer of capital to the bank
Stock issuance costs
Reimbursement of stock issuance costs
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Cash paid for fractional shares

Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase in cas{h
Cash and cashjequivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cashjequivalents, end of year

Years ended December 31,

2003 2002
$ 1,568 § 1,161
(1,595) (1,187)
17 (15)
- (63)
(44) (104)
(25) -
- (92)
92 -
67 (92)
106 8,045
- (6,404)
- (324)
63 .
- (6)
6 .
(18) (16)
157 1,295
180 1,099
1.126 27
$ 1,306 $ 1,126




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JONNNY C. AL ..ot et et be s ekt s sr et b s Horry County Treasurer
D. Singleton Bailey..........ocooiiiiiiiireieeeeceece e President, Loris Drug Store, Inc.
Franklin C. Blanton.............cccooovinvniiii e, et President, Blanton Supplies, Inc.

President, Blanton Supplies of Little River, Inc.
Clay D. Brittain, I .......ccoooiiiiiiiiii et et e et Attorney, Thompson & Henry, P.A,
Russell R. BUIZEss, Jr. ..o Owner, Aladdin Realty Company

Owner and Broker-In-Charge
Burgess Realty & Appraisal Service

William H. CaiNes.......ccecviriiiiiieiiiiiienie e President, Caines Realty & Appraisals, Inc.
JAMES R, CIAIKSON. c..iiiiiiii ittt ettt s et e et e e s e e e re e e s s errae s e sttt s e strtesenaeas President and CEO,
HCSB Financial Corporation

and Horry County State Bank

JoLavelle COBMAN.......cooiiiiiiii ettt e e et e e e e et aeaare e e e President, Tabor City Oil, Inc.
Larry G. FIOYd oo e e President, Floyd’s Insulation, Inc.
President, Cherry Grove Sales, Inc.

Boyd R FOrd, JT. vttt Retired, Ford’s Fuel Services, Inc.
& Ford’s Propane Gas, Inc.

TomMMIe W. GIailgeT . ..ccciiriiriiriesceiiereit e ete ettt et sanobe s President, Coastal Timber Co., Inc.
Randy B. Hardee...........cooviiiioiiiccc et President, Hardee Business Services, P.C.
GWYN G MCOCUICREON .ot e e et eneen e nonesae e s Dentist
T. Freddie MOOIe.........ccoooveivviiviiecieee e et e ettt et et e et en President, Gateway Drug Store, Inc.
Carroll D. Padgett, Jr. ..oooiiriicceece ettt Attorney, Carroll D. Padgett, Jr., P.A.

OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Russell R. Burgess, Jr. Randy B. Hardee
Chairman Vice Chairman
James R. Clarkson D. Singleton Bailey
President and CEO Secretary
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HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

HORRY COUNTY STATE BANK EMPLOYEES

James R. Clarkson, President/CEQO
Glenn R. Bullard, Executive Vice President
Michael W. Hambrick, Senior Vice President/CFO
Loretta B. Gerald, Vice President/Cashier/Internal Auditor
Margaret H. Fowler, Vice President/Operations Officer

Loris Office

Jimmy Nealey :
Amy Cannon

Debra Todd

Luise Boyd
Crystal Gerald

Lou Sherry Grissett
Stephanie Greerixwood

Tabor City

Walter Williamson
Phyllis Coleman
Whitney Hughes
JoAnn Floyd .
Gina Fogle

Lynn Cox ‘
Amantha Blackstock

Homewood

John Naughton!
Lori Pharr
Brenda Hill
Amy Branton
Laurie Johnson!|

Mt. Olive

Bernice Hammond
Judy Rowell
Tammy Huggins
Dianne Hewitt
Stephanie Jenkins

Meeting Street

Clay Harrelson
Sheila Caines
Amanda Stanley
Gina Rabon
Barbara Mincey

Socastee

Jerome Smoak

Josh Wise

Judy Monroe-Taylor
Ronni Burgunder
Shannon Poucher
Allison Tyler
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Little River

T.W. Hill, Jr,
Michael Leviner
Donna Gwyn
Rosemary Forrister
Theresa Cox
Cynthia Myers
Judy McCall

Tracy Bellamy

Conway

Frankie Lewis
Christy Garris
Marie Maslich
Diane Todd
Tina Martin
Shawnna Dew
Hannah Rogers
Richard Carroli

Myrtle Beach

Ron Paige
Debbie Guyette
Cindi Campbell
Jane Cannon
Tara Gause




HCSB FINANCIAL CORPORATION

HORRY COUNTY STATE BANK EMPLOYEES

Windy Hill Operations Executive
Charles Sprinkle Brett Roth Denise Floyd
Diana Elliott Alissa Gibson Terry Stevens
Evelyn Perez Rebecca Zyla . Heather Elliott
Dawnna Ward Delores Godwin Connie Graham
Betty Thomas Melissa Holmes Jay Wilson

Lila Tyler

Gloria Woodbury

Shelby Elliott

Carol Reichert
Saundra Stevens
Jolene Hamilton
Verna Ford
Ruthmary Tadlock
Gail Holmes

Joe Jones

Frances Anderson
April Hardwick

Lorene Wright
Jennifer Spencer
Stephanie Long
Ann Hardee
Crystal Mincey
Loria Barton
Sandy McGougan
Residential Mortgage HCSB Financial Services
Robert Levine Mark Buckner
Greta Todd Carolyn Jordan
Renee Ward
Regina Taylor
Kristina Ringer
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